
 

All visitors must present a valid driver’s license or other government-issued photo identification, sign in at the 
reception area and wear a visitor badge while at the DuPage Pumping Station.   

DuPage Water Commission 
600 E. Butterfield Road, Elmhurst, IL 60126-4642 

 (630) 834-0100    Fax: (630) 834-0120 
 

AGENDA COMMITTEE MEMBERS 
FINANCE COMMITTEE P. Suess, Chair 

THURSDAY, AUGUST 15, 2013 C. Janc 
6:00 P.M. J. Pruyn 

 D. Russo 
600 EAST BUTTERFIELD ROAD J. Zay 

ELMHURST, IL 60126  
 
I. Roll Call 

II. Approval of Minutes for Regular Committee Meeting of July 18, 2013 Finance 
Committee of the DuPage Water Commission 

III. Approval of Reconciliations 

IV. Treasurer’s Report – July 2013 

V. Financial Statements – July 2013 

VI. Resolution No. R-23-13:  A Resolution Authorizing and Directing the Use of 
General Account Balances for the Payment of Debt Service on the Northern Trust 
Certificate of Debt - $5MM 

VII. Election of Interest Period under Northern Trust Certificate of Debt 

VIII. 2013 Annual Audit Report 

IX. Quarterly Investment Update 

X. Legal Update 

XI. Accounts Payable 

XII. Other 

XIII. Adjournment 
 
Board\Agendas\Finance\2013\FC 2013-08.docx 



MINUTES OF A MEETING OF THE
FINANCE COMMITTEE

OF THE DUPAGE WATER COMMISSION
HELD ON THURSDAY, JULY 18, 2013

600 EAST BUTTERFIELD ROAD
ELMHURST, ILLINOIS

The meeting was called to order at 6:07.M.

Commiilee members in attendance: C. Janc, J. Pruyn, D. Russo (arrived at 6:09 P,M.), P.

Suess, J. Zay (arrived at 6:09 P.M.)

Committee members absent: none

Also in attendance: Treasurer D. Ellswofth, J. Spatz, C. Peterson, and T, McGhee

Minutes

Commissioner Janc moved to approve the minutes of the Regular Committee Meetinq of
Mav 16, 2013 of the Finance Committee. Seconded by Commissioner Pruyn and
unanimously approved by a Voice Vote.

All voted aye. Motion carried.

Approval of Reconciliations

Treasurer Ellsworth stated that he had reviewed and approved the journal entries and
bank reconciliations for the month of June.

Treasurer's Report - June 2013

Treasurer Ellswoilh provided the Committee with a summary of the April Treasurer's
Report. He noted on page 1 of the report that cash and investments remained relatively
unchanged at $63.9M even with payments of $4.2M towards debt service in June.

Treasurer Ellsworth discussed the detailed investment schedules, individual account
balances and market yield. Market yield on the portfolio decreased slightly to 45 basis
points. He stated that the fair value of the investments has declined compared to
amortized cost by slightly over $100,000 due to rising interest rate costs. At the prior fiscal
year end the fair market value of the investments was over $200,000 greater than
amortized costs.

Treasurer Ellsworth noted that year to date cash and investments has decreased by

$1.1M. Operating activities increased cash flows by approximately $1.5M due mainlyto
the timing of receivables collected and higher purchased water rates. Sales tax collections

increased cash receipts by $5.2M. Debt Service and Capital payments yearto-date were
just over $7.9M.

Treasurer Ellsworth stated that all targeted reserve levels were met or exceeded.

carolyn
Draft



Finance Committee Minutes July 18, ?013 Page 2

Financial Statements - June 2013

Financial Administrator Peterson provided the Committee with a summary of the May
Financial Statements. Revenues exceeded expenditures by approximately $5.2M as of
June 30, 2013, which is slightly ahead of budgeted expectations. Water sales for the
month were down 32o/o versus June 2012, and 10% versus the seasonal budgeted

amount.

General Manager Spatz noted that if water sales for the year remained at the current level

of 5% below budget, the Commission's net change would be a decline of about $500,000.
The net change is minimal due to water purchases being the most significant expense to
the Commission. Therefore, if water sales are down, water purchases decline as well.
Commissioner Pruyn did note that he had noticed the decline in water sales but that the
overall position of the Commission's revenues versus expenses were still trending
positively.

Sales Tax collections were approximately 1% higher than June 2012. Cumulatively Sales
Tax collections were approximately $247,000 over the prior year.

Financial Administrator Peterson then reviewed the cash and investment accounts versus
offsetting liabilities or targeted amounts.

Financial Administrator Peterson then described the changes in the balance sheet and
that the ledger system has been closed for fiscal 2013. Financial Administrator Peterson
stated there were no large variations in revenues or expenses at this time. Debt of $4.2
million was repaid in June 2013.

Chairman Suess asked about employment vacancies at this time. General $patz replied
that the Commission currently has one vacancy and may be hiring back a previous

employee that had nearly 20 years of experience prior to leaving the Commission.

o-5-13

Commissioner Pruvn moved to recommend to the Board an Ordinance for the Annual
Budqet and Appropriation Ordinance for the Fiscal Year Commencinq Mav 1. 2013 and
Endinq April 30.2014. Seconded by Commissioner Janc and unanimously approved by a
Voice Vote.

Allvoted aye. Motion carried.

General Manager Spatz and T. McGhee left the meeting at 6:20 p.m.

Election of Interest Period under Northern Trust Certificate of Debt

Financial Administrator Peterson stated that the Libor rate for one month is 0.192%
similar to last month.
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Chairman Suess discussed that Commission staff and the Treasurer will be meeting this
month to discuss debt repayment plan options to present to the Finance Committee.
Commissioner Pruyn noted that the next required payment on the debt certificates is not
until May 2015. Chairman Zay noted that the Commission still needs to remain

conservative due to uncertainties.

Commissioner Pruvn moved to recommend the election of a one-month Libor rate
period with Northern Trust to the General Board. $econded by Commissioner Janc and

unanimously approved by a Voice Vote.

Allvoted aye. Motion carried.

Status of 2013 Audit

Financial Administrator Peterson noted that the audit was progressing on schedule and
the auditors will be presenting the final drafi next month. lt was recommended to the
Commission staff to send copies to customers electronically first and offer printed

copies if requested.

Accounts Pavable

FinancialAdministrator Peterson presented the Accounts Payable to the committee
members. The numbers below were to be presented in the General Meeting.

June 5, 2013 to July 9, 2013 $ 7,174,391 ,89

Estimated $ 637.400.00

Total $ 7,811,791,89

Other

Financial Administrator Peterson noted that Commission staff is continuing to work on
closing accounts no longer needed due to the changes made in the banking and
investment structure over the past year.

Adiournment

Chairman Zav moved to adiourn the meetinq at 6:38P.M. Seconded by Commissioner
Janc and unanimously approved by a Voice Vote.

Allvoted aye. Motion carried.

Board\Minutes\Finance\201 3\Fc 201 3-07.docx



DuPage Water Commission
MEMORANDUM

TO: John Spatz, General Manager
FROM: Cheryl Peterson, Financial Administrator
DATE: August 6, 2013
SUBJECT: Financial Report - July 31 , 2013

r Water sales to Commission customers for July were 700,2 million gallons (19.8%) less than
July 2012, but increased by 507.7 million gallons compared to June 2013. Yearto-date water
sales have declined by 2,003.1 million gallons (21.1Yo) compared to the prior fiscal year.

r Water sales to Commission customers for July were 69.2 million gallons (2.4%) lower than the
budgeted anticipated/forecasted sales for the month. Year-to-date water sales were 309"2
million gallons (4.0%) lower than the budgeted anticipated/forecasted sales.

. July sales tax collections (April) were $2,808 million or 8.9% more than the same period last
fiscal year, Cumulatively, sales tax is $476,278 more as compared to prior year (6,3%).

r Water billings to customers for O&M costs were $9,4 million and water purchases from the City
of Chicago was $8.4 million. Water billing receivables at July month end ($13.9 million)
increased from the prior month ($t0,9 million) by $S.O million. This is due mainly to timing of
collections and increased billings. Billings to customers were up by approximately $1.7
compared to June.

r The Commission is three months or 25% into the fiscal year. The Commission's year to date
balances for revenues and expenditures are slightly below the seasonally budgeted amounts
due to lower than anticipated water sales and timing of expenses to be incurred. As of July 31,
2013, $35.0 million of the $135.1 million revenue budget has been realized. Therefore,25.9o/o
of the revenue budget has been accounted for year to date. For the same period, $26.7 million
of the $106.5 million expenditure budget has been realized, and this accountsfor25.l% of the
expenditure budget.

r Adjusted for seasonality based on a monthly trend: for the last ten fiscal years impacting water
service and water billing from Chicago; five fiscal years impacting sales tax revenues; and two
fiscal years impacting payroll, year to date revenues are 98.7% percent of the current budget
and expenses are 91.9% of the current budget.

r The Operating Reserve and Long Term Water Capital Accounts had reached their respective
July 31, 2013 targeted levels.

r The O&M, General Account and the Sales Tax Subaccount have balances of $10.6 million,

$7.4 million and $9.2 million, respectively,

. Debt Balances declined by nearly $1.2 million to $61,5 million outstanding in the current month.

cc: Chairman and Commissioners
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OI -WATER FUND

ASSETS

DUPAGE WATER COMMI$SION
BA],ANCE $HEET

AS OF: ,JULY 31ST, 2013

20L2-2013
BAITANCE

PAGE; 1

2013-2014
BAI,ANCE

CIJ.RRENT

CASH
INVESTMF]NTS
ACCOUNTS RECE]VABI,E

WATER SAI,ES
IN'I'EREST RECEIVABLE
SAIJES TAX RECEIVAB]*E
QTHER RECEIVABLE
INVENTORY
tsfrL L?A L!D

III'IA}1ORT'IZED ISSUANCE COST

TOTAI, CURRENT ASSETS

NolllqExxN.I 4E:9EJE
rfAE! ADntrla

LESS : ACCUMUI,AI'ED DEPRECIATION
CONSTRUCTION WORI{ IN PRAGRESS

LONG TERM RECEIVABLES
TOI'AL NONCI]RRENT .\SSETS

TOTAIJ ASSETS

LIAB I IJIT] ES

!!fi-+ FN I .Irl4El-!4 tF,F.
ACCOUNT'S PAYABI,E
ACCOUNTS PAYABLE CAPTTAL
ACCRUED PAYROLL LIABII,ITIES
NOTES PAYABLE
NOTES PAYABI,E DTSCOUN'I
tsONDS PAYAB],E
ACCRUED INTEREST
CONTP*\C'l' RETENTION
DHF'URRED REVENUE

TOTAI, CURRENT I,IABII,]TIES

NON c URREI'II.. LIAEIIIII_EE
CAP]TAI, I-EASE PAYABI,E
REVENUE BONDS

UNAMORT]ZED PREMIUM
OTIIER POST EMpLOYMENT BENEFITS LIAB

TQ:I'AL NONCURRENT I,IABIIrITIE$

TOTAI- LIABII,IT]EE

682 , 947 .67
bJ, dJb t tsa , t0

Ls, 154 ,202 ,31
111 A?? Ot

7,4O5,000.00
431,14?,40
167,080.00
Latta)J.14

98, 316, o2
88,084,1!9,52

498,277, s00.88
(128,700 ,792,32)

48,?53.15
_'637,568.54
370,262,53-o..25

458,346 ,949.87

gji, P79, tlE t2

498,8?s1724.97
(IJb, 5 /+ t a++ . al )

537,568_...54
364 , 44..3 , q1'l ,77,

4sI ,264 ,523 ,94

1,200.00
64,671,312.39

13,897,+23,'75
r.?9,459.84

7,54O,000.00
?34, 885.73
167,080.00
?I3,355 . 01

0.00

4,972,035.67
6,205.03

114 164 qq

25, 000, 000 . 00
0.00

10, 473, 750 ,00
99 ,45L .76

104,700.73
3,761 ,9_48,34

48,.738,?56.08

?r, 304 .81
?6, 048, S00 .00

( 1,385,974.26)
_-50,639.00

24,'734,829.55

73,473,095.63

9 ,873 ,777 ,6t
JOL,1{J. t)

309,8s4.89
45, 000, 000. 00

( 74, 999.95)
11,645,000.00

809, 865 .21
L,+4Jt+4t.Ot

-_ 4,11e,700.q-l
73,467,as0.r9

29 ,5!3 ,47
38, 730, 000,00

( r",?11,851.:r.L)
19,-"97-€.-Q-9

1:11,063,'778.55



8-06-2013 01r20 FM

OI -WATER FUND

ASSETS

DUPAGE WATER CQMMISSION
BAI,ANCE SIIEET

A$ OF; JULY 3LST, ?013

?0L2-2013
BAI]ANCE

PAGEI ?

20L3-?014
EAIJANCE

BEGINNING EQUTTY/RESERVES

TOTA], REVENUE
TOTAI, EXPENSES

NET CHANGE

../aTAT TiTTTT'v /E'FqF.P\/FSa\rf-! HVv+

NE'I' ASSETS

341", 810, 035 .39

35, 5t 8 ,429.48
30, 045, 293 . sl

- q,4E 1l!.11
341 ,283,L:J,I:]?

458,346, 949. S7

369,462,532.5q

3s,008,694.98
1d d.ta ?oo ?E

317 ,79L,4"?8 ,3r

45t ,264 ,523 .94
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DATE: August 5,2013

REQUEST FOR BOARD ACTION

AGENDA FinanceCommittee
SECTION

ORIeINATING Finance
DEPARTMENT

ITEM A Resolution Authorizing and
Directing the Use of General
Account Balances for the Payment
of Debt Service on the Northern
Trust Certificate of Debt

Resolution No. R-?3-13

APPROVAL

.$
O,ff

Account Nos.: 01-1217

Resolution No. R-23-13 would authorize the use of up to $5 MM of the July 31, 2013,
balance in the "general" account of the Water Fund, for payment (including
prepayment) of debt service on the Northern Trust Certificate of Debt.

MOTION: To adopt Resolution No. R-23-13.



DUPAGE WATER COMMISSION

RESOLUTION NO. R.23-13

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING AND DIRECTING THE USE OF
GENERAL ACCOUNT BALANCES FOR THE PAYMENT OF DEBT SERVICE ON THE

NORTHERN TRUST AND/OR WEST SUBURBAN CERTIFICATES OF DEBT

WHERHAS, by Ordinance No. O-1 5-12, the Commission authorized the issuance

of certain revenue bonds and created several special funds of the Commission, including

without limitation the "Water Fund" established by Section 501 of Ordinance No. O-15-1?;

and

WHEREAS, Ordinance No. O-15-12 created several accounts within the Water

Fund, including without limitation the "GeneralAccount"; and

WHEREAS, the Commission desires to utilize up to $5,000,000.00 of the balance

in the General Account as of July 31, 2013, for the payment (including prepayment) of

debt service on the Certificate of Debt issued pursuant to Ordinance No. O-3-

13: "Arl ORotruRrucr of the DuPage Water Commission, Counties of DuPage, Cook and

Will, lllinois, Further Amending the $40,000,000 Taxable Debt Certificate, Series 2010,

of the DuPage Water Commission, Counties of DuPage, Cook and Will, lllinois,

Pursuant to Agreement with the Original Purchaser [The Northern Trust Company]";

NOW, THEREFORE, BE lT RESOLVED by the Board of Commissioners of the

DuPage Water Commission as follows:

SECTION ONE: The foregoing recitals are hereby incorporated herein and by this

reference made a part hereof as findings of the Board of Commissioners of the DuPage

Water Commission as if fully set forth herein.

SECTION TWO: The General Manager of the DuPage Water Commission shall

be and hereby is authorized and directed to apply up to $5,000,000.00 of the balance in

-1-
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Resolution No. R-23-13

the General Account as of July 31,2013, for the payment (including prepayment) of

debt service on the Northern Trust Certificates of Debt notwithstanding any designation,

restriction, or reservation contained in Resolution No. R-3-13, being "A Resolution

Authorizing and lmplementing a Reserve Fund Policy for the DuPage Water

Commission."

SECTION THREE: This Resolution shall be in full force and effect from and after

its adoption.

AYES:

NAY$:

ABSENT:

ADOPTED this _ day of 201 3.

Chairman

ATTEST:

Clerk

Board/Resolutions/201 3/R-23-1 3.docx
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR' S REPORT

Members of the Board of Comrnissioners
DuPage Water Commission
Elmhurst, Illinois

We have audited the accompanying financial statements the DuPage Water Commission (the

Commission) as of and for the years ended April 30, 2013 and 2012, and the related notes to

financial statements, which collectively comprise the Commission's basic financial statements as

listed in the table of contents.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible fbr the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements

in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this
includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the
preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are fi'ee from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and

disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to flaud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers intemal control rolevant to the Commission's preparation and fair presentation of the
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances,
but not for the pu{pose of expressing an opinion on the eff'ectiveness of the Commission's
internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a

basis for our audit opinions.

-l-
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0pinions

In our opinion, the basic financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material
respects, the respective financial position of the Commission, as of April 3 0, 20 I 3 and 20 I 2, and

the respective changes in financial position and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the

years then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America.

Emphasis of Matter

The Commission adopted GASB Statement No. 62, Codification of Accounting and Financial
Reporting Guidance Contained in Pre-November 30, 1989 FASB and AICPA Pronottncements,

GASB Statement No. 63, Financial Reprtrting oJ'[)eJ'erred Outflows o.f Resources, Deferred
Inflows of Resources, and Net Position and GASB Statement No. 65, Items Previously Reported

as Assets and Liahilitie.r, during the year ended April 30, 2013. Statement No. 62 incorporates
into the GASB's authoritative literature certain accounting and financial reporting guidance.

Statement No. 63 added classifications on the statement of net position and changed net assets to

net position. Statement No. 65 changed the classifications of certain items on the statement of
position to the new classifications contained in GASB Staternent No. 63. The addition of these

statements had no effect on any of the Commission's net position as of and for the year ended

ApriI30,2013.

Other Matters

Req uired Supp I eme nt ary Infbrma t i on

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the
management's discussion and analysis and other required supplementary infbrmation be
presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of
the basic financial statements, is required by the Govemrnental Accounting Standards Board,
who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial
statements in an appropriate operational, econonlic, or historical context. We have applied
certain limited procedures to the required supplementary infbnnation in accordance with auditing
standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of
management about the methods of preparing the infbrmation and comparing the information for
consistency with management's responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and

other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not
express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures
do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of fbnning opinions on the financial statements that
collectively comprise the Commission's basic financial statements. The introductory section,
supplemental data, and statistical section are presented for purposes of additional analysis and

are not a required part of the basic financial statements.

The supplemental data is the responsibility of management and were derived from and relate
directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial
statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit
of the basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and



Prel irninary attd Tentati vc
Fot Discussion Purposcs Only

reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to
prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other

additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America. In our opinion, the supplemental data fairly stated, in all material respects, in
relation to the basic financial statements as a whole.

The introductory and statistical sections have not been subjected to the auditing procedures

applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and, accordingly, we do not express an

opinion or provide any assurance on them.

Naperuille, Illinois
June 28, 2013

-J-
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Prelirninary and Tcntative
For I)iscussion Purposes 0nlyDuPage Water Commission

Managementrs I)iscussion and Analysis

OVERVIEW OF' THE FINANCIAL STATEMBNTS

This section of the DuPage Water Commission's annual financial report presents our discussion

and analysis of the Commission's financial perfonnance during the fiscal years ending April 30,

2013,2012, and 2011.

This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the Commission's basic

tinancial statements. The Commission's basic t-rnancial statements are comprised of the

following components: Statement of Net Position, Staternent of Revenues, Expenses and

Changes in Net Position, Statement of Cash Flows and Notes to the Financial Statements. This
report also contains other supplementary information in addition to the hasic financial statements

themselves.

The Statement of Net Position presents information on all the Commission's assets, deferred
outflows, liabilities and deferred inflows, with the diffbrence between the four reported as net
position. Over time, increases or decreases in net position may serve as a useful indicator of
whether the financial position of the Commission is improving or deteriorating. The Statement of
Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position presents the infomation necessary to show
how the Commission's net position changed during the fiscal years ending April 30, 2013 and

2Q12.

Both statements are presented using the accrual basis of accounting, which is similar to the
accounting method used by most private-sector companies.

The Statement of Cash Flows provides information on the Commissionos gross sources and uses

ofcash during the fiscal year.

The Notes to the Financial Statements generally provide more detailed intbrmation about the
Commission's assets, deferred outflows, liabilities, deferred inflows, net position and operations,
as well as summarize the Commission's significant accounting policies.

FINANCIAL OPERATIONS SUMMARY

The Commission's net position rose by approximately $27.7 million in the current fiscal year.
Revenues and contributions were $126.7 million in fiscal 2013 compared to expenses totaling
$99.1 million. The Commission's revenues were higher than expected due to increased water
usage throughout the surnmer months. Expenditures were lower than budgeted primarily due to
interest savings and effective cost containment efforts more than offsetting higher than expected
water purchases.

Restricted net position was reduced to zero in the cuffent year due to the defeasance of the 2003

Revenue Bonds and the replacement of the related 1987 bond ordinance. The requirement for
restricted accounts to be maintained was not included in the new bond ordinance that became
effective on February 1,2013 when the 2013 Revenue Bonds were issued. As of April30,2013,
net investment in capital assets was $314.8 million.

MD&A I



Pre lirrrinary and l'entative
In fiscal year 2012, net position increased by $ 18.8 million to $341.8 million. Rnr&fttrnrssfirn Purposes Only
$102.0 million were approximately 12% higher in fiscal year 2012 compared to the prior year.

Expenses decreased by nearly 8% to $83.3 million compared to $90.1 million in tiscal20l l.
Restricted net position and net investment in capital assets were $36.6 million and $298.9
million, respectively.

FINANCIAL ANALYSI$

Changes in Net Position. The table on page MD&A 3 presents information on the

Commission's assets, deferred outflows, liabilities, and deferred inflows, with the difference
between the four reported as net position at April 3 0, 20 I 3 , 2012 and 20 I I . Net capital assets

represent the total of assets capitalized less accumulated depreciation.

Fiscal Year 2013
Capital assets, net decreased by $5.9 million in fiscal year 2013 due to depreciation expense of
$7.9 million offset by investment in new construction and equipment of $2.0 million.

Significant debt repayrnents, partially offset by a net decrease in capital assets, contributed to an

increase of $15.8 million in net investment in capital assets from the prior year. Debt used to
finance capital assets decreased by $21.7 million, of which $21.6 million was from principal debt
repayments related to capital assets plus $0.I million related to net amortization of premium and

loss on refunding costs.

Fiscal Year 2012
Capital assets, net decreased by $8.1 million in fiscal year ?012 due to depreciation expense of
$7.4 million and the write-off of $l.2 million in assets under construction, offset by inveshnent
in new construction, vehicles and equipment of $0.5 rnillion. As a result of the Commission's
improvements to the Lexington pumping station, the plarured capital project to build a second
reseruoir was no longer deemed necessary and the costs incrured to date for that project were
expensed.

Net investment in capital assets increased $1.8 million from the prior year. This is due to the
S8.l rnillion decrease in capital assets mentioned above coupled with a net decrease of $9.9
million in debt used to finance capital assets. ln the fiscal year 2012, principal debt repayments
related to capital assets of $10.6 million were partially offset by net amortization of premium and

loss on refunding costs of $0.7 million.

Restricted net position increased by $2.5 million from the prior year. For more infbrmation see

Note 8, in the notes to the financial statements.

MD&A 2



COMPARATIVE SUMMARY O[' NET POSITION
April 30,

Prelirrrinary and'l'entative
Fclr I)iscussirltr Purposcs Only

20ll2013 2012

Assets and Deferred Outllows of Resources

Current:

Cash and cash equivalents

Investments

Restricted cash and cash equivalents

Restricted irvestments

Receivables

Other assets

Non-curent;

Other assets

Long term loan receivable

Land and construction in process

Capital assets, net of depreciation

Total assets

Deferred outf'lows of resources:

Urramoftized loss on refunding

Total deferred outfl ows of resources

Total assets and deferred outflow of resources

Liabilities

Current:

Payables and accrued liabilities

Customer deposits

Bonds payable

Accrued interest

Capital lease payable

Unearned revenue

Non-current:

Unearned revenue

Other liabilities

Notes payable

Capital lease payable

Bonds payable

Total liabilities

Net Position

Net investment in capital assets

Restricted

Unrestricted

NET POSITION

449,880,614

l,508.201

465,930,957 475,328,457

2,r99,4r7 3,299,126

1.508"20r 2,199,417 3,299,t26

45 I ,388,81 5 468,130,374 478,627,583

20,3 51,459

44,817,r4r

17,860,339

474,028

637,570

13,250,482

352,489,595

8,544,488

22,943,780

28,390,510

17,351,625

15,803,796

475,960

189,603

637,570

12,098,217

359,495,408

26,837,754

32, I 87,288

10,980,000

19,889,484

492,945

266,137

5,000,569

41,200,486

338,473,794

7,204,559

219,589

I 6,381 ,250

136,357

8,208

350,507

3,505,068

50,639

28,000,000

2l ,305

26.048.800

7,714,603

648,884

10,565,000

2,130,242

t39,874

1,664,19'l

46,766

70,000,000

8,363,923

640,172

I I,090,000

1,7 57,926

7,704

350,032

3,858,1 19

48,876

49,000,000

29,514

51,17-3,871 62,702,M4

81,926,281

314,760,847

54,701,687

1?6,3?0,337

298,927,547

36,566,886

6,315,604

155,612,204

297,147,079

34,115,788

(8,24r,488)

$ 369.462.534

MD&A 3
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Revenues and Expenses. The table which follows presents a comparative surFot@iwfrseitmrRmposes Only

expenses and changes in net position fbr the years ended April 3 0, 2013 , 20LZ and 20 I I . The

most significant source of revenues for the Commission continues to be from water sales.

Fiscal Year 2013
Water sales for fiscal year 2013 were 29.23 billion gallons versus 27.51 billion gallons last fiscal
year. The charter customer operations and maintenance average water rate increased from an

average of $2.24 per thousand gallons to an average of $2.89 per thousand gallons for fiscal year

2013 due to a rate increase of 20% in .Tanuary 2013. Water revenue increased by $22.9 million or
32.9o/o as a result of the higher rates and a6.30/o increase in water sales. There were no major
new customers.

The Commission's sales tax revenues increased by $1.2 million or 3.8%, similar to the growth
rate in fiscal 2012. Sales tax revenues have not yet recovered fully from the recent economic
downturn but have continued to show stable growth over the past thee years. Sales tax funds of
$7.1 million were used to reduce the customers' fixed cost payments fbr tiscal year 2013 by
50%. This practice started in fiscal year 1998 and has continued through fiscal year 2013.

Investment income increased by nearly $0.4 million tlorn the prior year due to improved
investment yield rates. The Commission began moving cash into longer term investments in late
fiscal 2012. A more significant amount of the invested funds were therefore in the higher yield
long-term investments for the full year, which resulted in increased investment income in fiscal
2013. However, the growth rate on the yield on investments is still being restricted by the low
interest rate environment.

Water distrihution costs remain the highest expense in the Commission's operations. Water
distribution costs increased $17.7 million mainly due to the City of Chicago increasing their
water rate charged to their customers and a rise of'over 6% in water purchases in fiscal 2013.

Fiscal Year 2012
ln fiscal year 2012, water sales declined to 27.51 billion gallons compared to 28.1I billion
gallons in the prior fiscal year. The average charter customer operations and maintenance water
rate increased from $1.84 per thousand gallons to $2.24 per thousand gallons for fiscal year
2012. Water revenue increased by $9.9 million or 16.6% due primarily to a 30% rate increase
implemented in the fiscal year.

The Commission's sales tax revenues increased by $l.l million or 3.6Yo as the local economy
slightly improved over the prior year. In addition, $7.1 million of sales tax funds were used to
reduce the customers' fixed cost payments for fiscal year 2012by 50%. This practice started in
fiscal year 1998 and has continued through fiscal year 2012.

Investment income decreased $0.I million from the prior year due to a fuither decline in
investment yield rates.

The highest expense in the Commission's operations remains water distribution costs. The City
of Chicago increasing their water rate charged to their customers was the main driver of water
distribution costs increasing by $0.8 million (1.3%) in fiscal year 2012.
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COMPARATIVE SUMMARY OF REVENUES" EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET
POSITION

For the f iscal Years Ending April30,
2013 2012 20ll

REVENUES

Operating:

Water sales - all categories

Other

Nonoperating:

Sales tax

lnvestment income

Total Revenue

EXPENSES

Operating:

Water supply costs

Depreciation

Personal services

Other

Nonoperating:

Ilterest and other charges

Intergovernmental expense - City of Chicago

Loss on disposal ofcapital assets

Loss from loan to chafier customer

Total Expense

Net income (loss) before contributions

Contributions

Change in net position

Net position, May I

Net position, April 30

t26,3',72,282 102,035,178 90,836,079

$ 92,600,883

164,774

33,098,620

508,005

$ 69,692,569

349,425

31,878,312

114,87?

$ 59,785,622

16,453

30,780,825

253,179

82,207,354

7,889,770

3,692,195

1,726,419

3,563,014

64,544,607

7,381,640

3,529,546

1,643,289

4,999,573

36,-508

1,145,593

63,717,280

6,979,751

3,373,895

l,lg4,792

6,755,947

7,199,344

425,000

99,068,752

27,303,530

83,269,756

18,765,422

90,135,003

701,076

356,770348.e67 29.236

21,652,491

341.810.037

18,794,658 1,057,946

323 ,015,379 321 ,951 ,533

$ 369.462.534 $ 341,810,037 $ 323,015,379
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CAPITAL ASSBTS AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION
Preliminary and I'entative
For Discussion I'urposes Only

Capital Assets. The Commission's capital assets before depreciation totaled $500.3 million in
fiscal vear 2013.

COMPARATIVE SUMMARY OF CHANGES IN NET CAPITAL ASSETS
For Fiscal Years Ending April 30,

2013 2012 201 1

Land and permanent easements

Construction in progress
Water mains
Buildings and other structures
Pumping equiprnent
Office fumiture and equiprnent
Vehicles and other equipment

TOTAL CAPITAL ASSETS. NET

s 1 1,728,902
l,52l,5go

281,505,610
60,215,251
10,532,375

93,147
l43,ZlZ

$ I 1,728,902
369,315

286,053,338
61,979,662
I l,l4l,2l3

120,230
200,965

$ 11,728,902
29,471,584

290,434,945
45,929,867

l,gl7,595
35,669

155,718

$365,740,071 $371,593,625 $379,674,280

Detailed information about the Commission's capital assets is presented in the Notes to the
Financial Statements.

Deht Administration. ln fiscal 2013, the Comrnission implemented a new bond ordinance
upon defeasance ofthe 2003 Revenue Bonds and issuance ofthe 2013 Revenue Bonds. The

current bond ordinance does not include requirements for certain balances to be maintained in
specific accounts. Account requirements under the 1987 revenue bond ordinance in relation to
the 2003 Revenue Bonds were rnet each month the debt was outstanding in fiscal year 2013 and

each month of fiscal years ending April 30, 2012 and 201 l, with one exception. The
Depreciation Account was under funded by $ I .7 million at May 3 I , 2010. This was rectified by
June 30,2010.

Fiscal Year 2013
On April 30, 2013, the 2013 Revenue Bond principal outstanding was $42.4 million. The full
amount of the 2003 Revenue Bonds was placed into escrow for the defeasance of the bonds on
February l, 2013. Prior to that time all required revenue bond principal and interest payments
were made on time from funds set aside during fiscal year 2013.

Certificates of debt outstanding were $28 million as of April 30, 2013, down from $49 million as

of April 30, 2012. The Commission issued a $30 million cerlificate of debt on December 2009,
and a $40 million certificate of debt was issued in May, 2010. Both were used to fund ongoing
construction projects and purchase water from the City of Chicago. No principal payments are

required in fiscal ?014.

No additional capital lease obligations were entered into in fiscal 2013. The principal value
remaining on the capital lease set to expire in Septernber 2016 was approximately $29,500.
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At liscal year-end the Operations and Maintenance Reserue Account and the Depreciation

Account were overfunded by fi78,437 and $31,952, respectively. The General Account balance

was $l8.1 million, which included a $13.0 million reserve established as Commission policy in

July 2010, for Emergency Repairs and Other Contingencies.

The required revenue bond principal and interest payments were made on time from funds set

aside druing fiscal year 2012. On April 30, 2012, remaining revenue bond principal outstanding
was $61.5 million.

As of April 30,2012, the Commission had $49.0 million in certificates of debt outstanding
compared to $70 million in certificates of debt at the end of the prior fiscal year. The
Commission issued a $30 million certificate of debt on December 2009, and a $40 million
certificate of debt was issued in May, 2010. Both were used to fund ongoing construction
projects and purchase water from the City of Chicago. No principal payments are required in
fiscal 2013.

In September 2011, the Commission entered into a capital lease obligation for oflice equipment
which expires in five years. The value of the lease was approximately $42,100.

COMPARATIVE SUMMARY OF CHANGES IN OUTSTANDING DEBT
For Fiscal Years Ending April 30,

2013 2012 201 I

Fiscal Year 2012

Certificates of debt
Water revenue bonds
Capital lease

TOTAL OUTSTANDING DEB'I'

$28,000,000
42,430,050

29,513

$ 49,000,000 $ 70,000,000
61,465,000 72,030,000

37.218

$70,459,563 $t 10,502,218 $142,030,000

Detailed information about the Commission's debt is presented in the Notes to the Financial
Statements.

INVESTMENT PORTFOLIO

Fiscal Year 2013
The Commission's investment portfolio totaled $58.7 million. At the end of the fiscal year, the
portfblio was eaming 0.42Vo. The benchmarks adopted by the Commission are based on the
nature of the accounts and expected duration of the investment$. The indices range from the 3
month U.S. Treasury Bill index to the I-5 year U.S. Treasury Bill index.

Commission funds were invested as follows at April 30, 2013: United States agency investments
(33%), United States treasury obligations (32%), money market funds (14%), the Illinois Funds

investment pool (10%), municipal bonds (7%), certificates of deposit (3%), and commercial
paper (1%).

Fiscal Year 2012
The Commission's investment portfolio totaled $76.4 million. At the end of the fiscal year, the
overall portfolio was earning approximately 0.25o/o. The benchmarks adopted by the
Commission are based on the nature of the accounts and expected duration of the investments.
The indices range from the 3 month U.S. Treasury Bill index to the l-5 year U.S. Treasury Bill
index.
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Commission funds were invested as follows at April 30, 2012: the lllinois Funds investment pool
(28%), United States treasury obligations (23%), money market funds (19%), United States

agency investments (15%), commercial paper (12%), and certificates of deposit (3%).

OTHER FINANCIAL INFORMATION

The Commission joined with the County of DuPage and the municipalities within the county to

solve a water quality issue involving unincorporated areas not presently receiving a Lake
Michigan water supply. As a wholesale distributor of Lake Michigan water, the Commission is
not able to directly address this issue. However, the Commission agreed to make long-tetm, low-
interest loans available to customer municipalities, retailers of Lake Michigan water, to extend
their systems to sele county areas having water quality issues. The full extent of this
contamination is unknown at this time. However, the Commission has committed to provide
loans totaling not more than $10 million toward mitigating the problem.

In total the Commission issued three loans for approximately $5.6 million to charter customers
during 2003-2007. Two of the loans were to be repaid in l3 installments, commencing in 201 I
and continuing through 2023. Both of these loans have been paid in full. The third loan is to be

repaid in 13 installments, commencing in 2014 and continuing through 2026. As of April 30,

2013 only $0.6 million remained outstanding from the customers.

REOUEST FOR INFORMATION

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the DuPage Water
Commission's finances. Questions conceming any of the infbrmation provided in this report or
requests for additional financial information should be addressed to Financial Administrator,
DuPage Water Commission, 600 E. Butterfield Road, Elmhurst, lL 60126-4642, (630) 834-0100.
E-mail requests should be sent to admin@)dpwc.org:
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DUPAGE WATER COMMISSION
ELMHURST, II,LINOIS

STATEMENTS OF NET POSITION

April 30, 2013 and 2012

['relinrinary ancl Tentative
For Discussion Purposcs Only

201 3 2012

CURRENT ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents

Investments
Restricted cash and cash equivalents

Restricted investments

Receivables
Water sales

Accrued interest

Sales tax
Due from other govemments

Inventory
Prepaid expenses and deposits

Total current assets

NONCURRENT ASSETS

Unamofiized issuance costs

Long-term loans receivable

Capital a$sets

Not being depreciated

Being depreciated

Less accumulated depreciation

Net capital assets

Total noncurrent assets

Total assets

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES

Unamortized loss on refunding

Total deferred outflows of resources

Total assets and deferred outflows ofresources

93,502,967 93,510,159

20,351,459
44,81',1,1_41

10,015,1ss
280,504

7,500,000

64,680

167,080

306,948

9,544,499
22,943,780
28,390,510
17,35t,625

7,4s2,273
78,132

7,405,000

868,391

167,080

308,880

189,603

637,570 637,570

13,250,482
487,090,296

12,099,217
486,??0,?05

(134,600,701) (126,724,797)

365.740.077 3',11.593.62s

366,377,647 372.420,798

449.880.614 465,930,9s7

1,508,201 2,t99,417

I,508,201 2,199,417

451 .388.8 l s

(This statement is continued on the
-4-

following page.)
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DUPACE WATER COMMISSION
ELMHURST. ILLINOIS

STATEMENTS OF NET POSITION (Continued)

April 30, 2013 and 2012

Prelirrrinary and Tentativc
For Discr"rssion I'urposes Only

201 3 20t2
CURRENT LIABTLITIES

Unearned revenue

Contract retentions

Customer deposits

Accounts payable

Accrued liabilities
Compensated absences

Capital lease payable

Revenue refunding bonds payable

Accrued interest payable

Total current liabilities

LONG-TERM LIABILITIES
Other postemploynent benefits obligation
Uneamed reverlue

Capital lease payable

Revenue refunding bonds payable, net

Notes payable

Total long-tenn liabilities

Total liabilities

NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets

Restricted by bond ordinances

Unrestricted

TOTAL NET POSITION

350,507 $

I 16,405

219,s89

6,483,586
393,868
210,699

8,208

16,381 ,250
136,357

350,032
507,',736

640,372

7,017,534
648,217

190,436

7,704
I1,090,000
1,757,926

24.300.469 22,209,957

50,639

3,505,068
2 t,305

26,048,800
28,000,000

49,976

3,g5g,l l9
29,s14

51,173,871
49,000,000

57,625,812 104.1 10.380

91,926,281 126,320,337

314,760,847

54.701.687

298,927,547

36,566,886
6,31s,604

369,462,s34 $ 341 ,8 I 0,037

See accompanying note.s to financial statement.
-f,-



DUPAGE WATER COMMISSION
ELMHURST. ILLINOIS

STATEMENTS OF REVENUES" EXPENSES, AND
CHANGES INNET POSITION

For the Years Ended April 30, 2013 and 2012

Preliminary and'Ientative
Iror Discr.rssion l'urprlses Orrly

20r3 20t2
OPERATING REVENUES

Water sales

Operations and maintenance costs

Fixed costs

Customer differential
Other income

l'otal operating revenues

OPERATING EXPENSES

Water supply costs

Personal services

Insurance

Professional and contractual services

Administrative costs

Total operating expeilses

OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) BEFORE DEPRECIATION

DEPRECIATION

OPERATING INCOME (LOSS)

NONOPERAT]NG REVENU ES (EXPENSES)

Sales tax

Invesilxent income

Intergovernmental expense

lnterest and other charges

Loss on disposal ofcapital assets

Total nonoperating revenues (expenses)

NET INCOME BEFORE CONTRIBUTIONS

Contributions

CHANGE INNET POSITION

NET POSITION, MAY 1

NET POSITION. APRIL 30

27,652,497 18,794,658

341.810.037 323.015.379

$ 369.462.534 $ 341.810.037

84,535,827 $

7,144,872
920,1 84

6l ,640, 145

1,144,594
907,830

164,774 349.425

92,765,657 70,041,994

82,207,354

3,682,1 95

53t,0t0
639,495

64,544,607

3,529,546
545,8 l0
651,286

55 5.914 440.193

87,6 I 5,968 69 ,',7 l7 ,442

5,149,689 324,552

7,889,770 7,381,640

(2,740,08 t) (7,057,088)

33,098,620

J08,005

(3,563,014)

3l,878,312
114,972

(36,s08)
(4,e88,s73)
( l,145,593)

30,043,61I 25,822,510

27,303,530

348,967

18,765,422

29,236

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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I'relirlinary and Tcntativc
For Discr"rssion Purposes 0nlyDIJPAGE WATER COMMISSION

ELMHI.JRST. ILLINOIS

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

For thc Years Endetl Apnl 30, 20 I 3 and 20 | 2

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Cash rcccivsl frunt custorters

Cash payrnerrts to supplicrs

Caslr payments to crnployccs

Other cash receipts

Ne{ cash ftom operating activitics

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Cash received frotn sales taxcs

Cash received from water quality loans

Cash payments lbr intergovenrmmtal expenses

Net cash liorn noncapital financing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED
FINANCINC ACTIVITIES
Interest paid on revenue bonds
Interest paid on notcs payablc
Intcrcst paid on capital lease payable

Proceeds frorn rcvcnuc rcfunding bonds issued

Principal paid on rcvcnue rcfunding bonds

Principal paid on notes payable

Principal paid on capital lease payable

Construction and putchases of capital assets

Nct cash fiom capital and rclated

financing activitics

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Interest oil investments

Proceeds fiom sale ofinvestrnents
Purchase o1- investments

Net cash lionr investins activities

NET INCREASE IN CASH
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

CASH AND CASH EQLJJVALENTS, MAY I

CASH AND CASH EQU]VALENTS, APRIL.3O

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS . STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
Cash and cash cquivalcnts
Restdcted cash and cash ertuivalerrts

TOTAL CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENI'S . STATEMEN'I'OF' NET POSITION

2013 2012

$ 89,264,642 $ 7l,873,?91
(84,ss2,733) (6r,017,4s4)
(2,620,29s) (2,490,342)

I l 6.606 349.42s

2.20r1.220 $.714,920

33,003,620 31,8 | 9,493

4,362,999
(36.508)

33.003.6?0 36. | 45.984

(4,313,i13) (3,463,3r3)

(787 ,377) ( l,302,8 r 2)
(2,145) (1,694)

42,430,050
(61.465,000) (10,56s,000)

(2l,ooo,ooo) (2t,ooo,ooo)
(7 ,7051 (4,87 r )

(2,433,e86) (r,602,23r)

(47,579,276\ (37,939,9?l)

101,050 ?{l 551

41,109,330 20,856,000
(45.426.483) (50.1 18.580)

(4,216,103) (29,01 1,027)

(r6,583,53e) (22,0e0,044)

36,934,998 59.025,042

$ 20,351,459 $ 36,9

ti ?0,351 ,459 $ 8,544,488

- 28,390,510

li 20,35 t,459 $ 36,934,998

(This statement is continu€d on the following page.)



DU PACE WATER COMMISSION
ELMHURST, ILLINOIS

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS (Continued)

Forthe Years Endcd April 30,20I3 and 2012

Prcliminary and'l'entative
Iror Discussion I'urposes Only

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATINC INCOME (LOSS)

TO NET CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATINC ACTI\TTIES
Operating income (loss)

Adjustments to rcconcile operating income (loss) to

ilet cash frorn opcrating activities

Depreciation

Changes in asscts and liabilities
Increase in water sales receivahlc

Decrease in prcpaid cxpt:nses and deposits

Decrease in due from other govcrnmcnts

Increase (Decrease) in uneamed reverluc

lncrcasc (Decrease) in accounts payable

Dccrease in accrued liabilities and cornpensaterJ absenccs

lncrcasc in other postemploynrent burefits obligation

Decrcasc in custorner deposits

NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

NONCASH CAPITAL AND RELATED
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Contributions

Capital assct additions financed with accrued liabilities and conttact retefltiofls

Purchasetl ofcapital assets financecl with capital lease

20f3 2012

(2,740,081) $ (7,057,088)

7"889"770 7,381,640

(2,562,882)

I,932

803,7r I

(352,576)
(s33,948)

(214,2s21

16,985

4,1 69,253
2,403,486

3,I I 1,375

121,3r4 (I,090,077)
t!/oJ 2,il0

(420.783) (8,512)

?.208.220 $ 8,7t4,920

348,9{t7 $ ?Q ?lfr

tt1,447 $ 355,400

42.089

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
-8-



Preliminary and'l'entati ve

For Discussion Purposcs ()rrly

l.

DUPACE WATER COMMISSTON
ELMHURST. ILLINOIS

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

April30,2013 and 2012

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOI.INTING POLICIES

The DuPage Water Commission (the Commission) is a county water commission, body
politic and corporate, political subdivision and unit of local government, in DuPage

County, Illinois, existing and operating under the Water Commission Act of 1985 (70 ILCS
3720), effective July 30, 1985. as amended (the 1985 Commission Act). The Commission
declared the official statt of operations on May I , 1992.

The Board of Commissioners consists of 13 members. Seven of the Board members are

appointed by the DuPage County Board Chainnan with the advice and consent of the
County Board. One of these appointees is designated as Chairman of the Commission and

must be approved by the Board of Commissioners. The other six Board members are

appointed by vote of the mayors of municipalities within the DuPage County districts.

The purpose and objectives of the Commission are:

To provide water to municipalities and other customers within DuPage County.

To plan, construct, acquire, develop, operate, maintain, and/or contract for facilities
for receiving, storing, and transmitting water from Lake Michigan fbr the principal
use and mutual benefit of the municipalities and other customers.

To provide adequate supplies of such water on an economical and efficient basis for
the municipalities and other customers.

To provide a forum for discussion, study development, and implementation of
recommendations of mutual interest regarding water distribution and supply facilities
within DuPase Countv.

The primary authority to designate management, influence operations, formulate budgets,

and set water rates rests with the Board of Commissioners. Significant matters that require
Board action include setting water rates, borrowing funds, amending the Chicago Water
Supply Contract or Commission by-laws, and ernploying the general manager, treasurero

financial administrator, and profbssional contractors. These significant matters must cany
a majority vote of all commissioners, which majority must contain at least one-third of the

DuPage County appointed Board members and 40% of the municipality appointed Board
members.

b.

d.

-9-



Prelirninary and Tcntative

DUPACE WATER COMMISSION For Discussion I'urposes Only
ELMHURST, ILLINOIS
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

1. SUMMARY OF SICNIFICANT ACCOTINTING POLICIES (Continued)

The financial statements of the Commission have been prepared in conformity with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, as applied to
govemment units (hereinafter ref"erred to as generally accepted accounting principles
(AAAP)). The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted

standard'setting body for establishing govemmental accounting and financial repofting
principles. The more significant of the Commission's accounting policies are described

below.

a. Reporting Entity

The Cornmission is considered to be a primary govemment pursuant to GASB
Statement No. 14 since it is legally separate and fiscally independent. These

financial statements include all functions, programs, and activities under the control
of the Board of Commissioners.

b. Basis of Accorutting

The accounting and financial reporting treatment applied to a fund is determined by
its measurement focus. All proprietary funds are accounted for on a flow of
economic resources measurement focus. With this measurement fbcus, all assets and
all liabilities associated with the operation of these funds are included on the
statement of net position. Proprietary firnd operating statements present increases
(e.g., revenues) and decreases (e.g., expenses) in total net position.

The accrual basis of accounting is utilized by proprietary funds. Under this method,
revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded at the time liabilities
are incuffed. Operating revenues/expenses include all revenues/expenses directly
related to providing enterprise fund services. Nonoperating revenues/expenses are
incidental to the operation of the fund.

c. Fund Accounting

Enterprise Funds

Enterprise Funds are used to account for operations (a) that are flnanced and operated
in a manner sirnilar to private business enterprises - where the intent of the
Commission is that the costs (expenses, including depreciation) of providing goods
or services to the general public on a continuing basis be financed or recovered
primarily through user charges; or ft) where the Commission has decided that
periodic detennination of revenues eamed, expenses incurred, and net income or loss
is appropriate for capital maintenance, public policy, management control,
accountability, or other purposes.

-10-



Prelirninary and'l'errt;rtive

DUPAGE WATER COMMISSION For Discussion Purposes Only
ELMHURST, ILLINOIS
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

l. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOTINTING POLICIES (Continued)

d. Cash and Cash Equivalents

For purposes of the statement of cash flows, the Conrmission's proprietary funds

consider all certificates of deposit and all highly liquid investments with an original
maturity of three months or less when purchased to be cash equivalents.

e. Investments

Investments with a maturity of one year or less when purchased are stated at cost or
amortized cost. Investments and negotiable certificates of deposits with a maturity
date greater than one year from the date ofpurchase are recorded at fair value.

f. Accounts Receivable

Customer receivables are recorded as receivables and revenues at their original
invoice amount. Management has determined no allowance for uncollectible
accounts necessary as ofApril 30, 2013 and 2012. A receivable is considered to be

past due if any portion of the receivable balance is outstanding for more than 40 days.

g. Prepaid Expenses

Pa1'rnents made to vendors for services that will benefit periods beyond the date of
this report, ifany, are recorded as prepaid expenses.

h. Inventory

Inventories are accounted fbr at cost, using the first-in/first-out (FIFO) method.

i. Restricted Cash and Cash Equivalents and Investments

Restricted cash and cash equivalents and investments represent those assets which
are required to be held separately from ottrer Commission investments as mandated

by the revenue bond indentures and as self-imposed by ordinance or resolution by the
Board of Commissioners.

- lt -



DUPAGE WATER COMMISSTON
ELMHURST, ILLINOIS
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

Prel irninary and'l'entati ve

For Discussion I'urposes 0nly

I. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOLJNTING POLICIES (Continued)

j Capital Assets - Propefiy, Plant, and Equipment

Propefty, plant, and equipment are recorded at cost. Ifactual cost cannot be

determined, estimated historical cost is used; donated capital assets are valued at

their estimated fair market value on the date donated. Capital assets are defined by
the Commission as assets with an initial, individual cost of more than $5,000 and an

estimated useful life in excess of one year. Depreciation of property, plant, and

equipment has been provided for over the estimated useful lives using the straight-
line method. Estimated useful lives are as follows:

Water mains
Buildings and other structures
Pumping equipment
Office fuiniture and equipment
Vehicles and other equipment

80 years

40 years

30 years

3 - 10 years

5 - 25 years

k.

Maintenance and repairs are charged to expense in the year incurred. Expenses that
extend the useful lif'e or increase productivity of ploperty, plant, and equipment are

capitalized.

Bond Discounts, Bond Pretniutns, and Losses on Refundings

Bond discounts, bond premiums, and losses on refundings are deferred and

amortized over the tenn of the bonds using the bonds outstanding method, which
approximates the effective interest method. Bond discounts and losses on refundings
are presented as a reduction of the face amount of bonds payable; bond premiums are

presented as an addition to the face amount of bonds payable. Bond issuance costs

are expensed in the period incurted.

Compensated Absences

Employees eam vacation based on their anniversary date with the Commission.
Earned vacation may be accumulated and is payable to the employee upon
termination of employment and, therefbreo is accrued through April30.
Accumulated sick leave is not reimbursable upon termination of employment and,

therefore, is not accrued.

Uneamed Revenue

Payments from member communities due in subsequent years and received in the
current year are reported as unearned revenue.

l.

m.

-12-



DUPAGE WATER COMMISSION
ELMHURST, ILLINOIS
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

Preliminary alrd Tcntativc
l'or l)iscussion Purposcs Only

t. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Net Position

Restricted net position represent amourts required to be segregated by bond

ordinance provisions. None of the net position is restricted as a result of enabling

legislation adopted by the Commission. Net investment in capital assets represents

the net book value of capital assets less long-term debt principal outstanding issued

to construct or acquire capital assets.

Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources

In addition to assets, the statement of net position will sometimes repoft a separate

section for deferred outflows of resources. This separate financial statement element,
deferred outflows of resources, represents a consumption of net assets that applies to
a future period(s) and so will not be recognized as an outflow of resources (expense)

until then. In addition to liabilities, the statement of financial position will
sometimes report a separate section for deferred inflows of resources. This separate

financial statement element, defened inflows of resources, represeilts an acquisition
of net assets that applies to a future period(s) and so will not be recognized as an

inflow of resources (revenue) until that time. The Commission does not have any
deferred inflows of resources that meet this criteria.

Accounting Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted

accounting principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that
affect the reporled amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent
assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the repofled amounts

of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ
from those estimates.

DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS

The Commission's investment policy limits investments of the Commission's funds to the
following: (a) direct or fully guaranteed obligations of the U.S. Government; (b) fully
guaranteed obligations of certain U.S. f'ederally chartered agencies; (c) interest-bearing
demand or time deposits in hanks and savings and loan associations; (d) short{em
obligations of U.S. corporations with assets exceeding $500,000,000 and with a rating of
Al/Pl; (e) money market mutual funds whose portfblio consists solely of U.S. Government
obligations; (f) the Illinois Funds Investment Pool of the State of Illinois; (g) state and local
obligations rated A-lA3; and (h) repurchase agreements.

o.

p.

2.

-13



DUPAGE WATER COMMISSION
ELMHURST, ILLINOIS
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

Prel irrr irrary and'l'enlative
For Discussion Purposes (Jnly

2. DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS (Continued)

It is the policy of the Commission to invest its funds in a manner which will provide the

highest investment retum with the maximum secudty while meeting the daily cash flow
demands of the Commission and confbrming to all state and local statutes goveming the

investment of public funds, using the "prudent person" standard for managing the overall
portfolio. The primary objectives of the policy are, in order of priority, safety, Iiquidity,
and rate ofreturn.

b.

Deposits with Financial Institutions

Custodial credit risk for deposits with financial institutions is the risk that in the

event of bank failure, the Commissionos deposits may not be returned to it. The

Commission's investment policy allows for the pledging of collateral for all bank
balances in excess of federal depository insurance, with collateral held by a third
party rurder a trust agreement or safekeeping agreement. The bank balance of cash

and certificates of deposit was fully insured at April 30, 2013 and 2012.

Investments

The following table presents the investments and maturities of the Commission's
debt securities as of April 30, 2013 and 2012:

2013
Investment Mahrities in Years

Fair Less than
I l-5 6-10

Greater than
l0Inveshnent TyDe Value

U.S. Treasury notes
U.S. agency
Comrnercial Paper
Municipal Bond

TOTAL

$19,026,909$ 2,195,832$16,831,077$ -$
19,419,693 - 19,419,693

499,934 499,934
3.897.60s 3.897.60s

$42,844,141 $ 2,695,766 $40,148,375 $ - $

-14-



DUPACE WATER COMMTSSION
ELMHURST, ILLINOIS
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

I'reliminary and J'entative
For Discussiotr Purposcs 0nly

2. DEPOSITS AND TNVESTMENTS (Continued)

b. lnvestments (Continued)

On the Statement of Net Position are $ I ,973 ,000 of cefiiticates of deposit that are

recorded as investments for both 2013 and 2012.

2012
lnvestrnent Maturitics in Years

Fair Less than Greater than

Investment Twe Value I l-5 6-10 l0

U.S. Treasury notes
U.S. agency
Commercial Paper

TOTAL

$ 17,291,704 $
11,944,200
9,086,502

1,444,942 $ 15,846,862 $
- 11,944,200

9.086.502

$ 38.322,406 $ 10,-531,344 $ 27,791,062 $

Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in interest rates will adversely afTbct the fair
value of an investment. In accordance with its investrnent policy, the Commission
limits its exposure to interest rate risk by structuring the portfolio to provide liquidity
for short and long-term cash flow needs while providing a reasonable rate of retum
based on the current market. lnvesfinents cannot have a maturity greater than five
years except commercial paper which is lirnited to 210 days.

Credit risk is the risk that the issuer of a debt security will not pay its par value upon
maturity. The Commission limits its exposure to credit risk by primarily investing in
U.S. Government obligations and external investment pools. The money market
fund and Illinois Funds are AAA rated. The commercial paper is rated Al and the
municipal bonds are rated A to fuqA.

Custodial credit risk for investments is the risk that, in the event of the failure of the
countelparty to the investment, the Cornmission will not be able to recover the value
of its investments that are in possession of an outside party. To limit its exposure,

the Commission's investment policy requires all security transactions that are

exposed to custodial credit risk to be processed on a delivery versus payment (DVP)
basis with the underlying investments held by an independent third-party custodian in
the Commission's name and evidenced by safekeeping receipts. Money market
funds are not subject to custodial credit risk.

Concentration of credit risk is the risk of loss due to a high percentage of the
Commission's investments being invested with any one issuer. The Commission's
investment policy places no limit on the amount the Commission may invest in any
one issuer, except for commercial paper which is limited to 50/o of the total portfolio.

- 15 -



I'relirninary and'l'entative
l'or l)iscussion Pr.rrposes OnlyDUPAGE WATER COMMISSION

ELMHURST, ILLINOIS
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

3. LOANS RECEIVABLE

On April 25, ?00?, the Cornmission approved a motion fkrr a proposed agreement to make

long-term, low-interest loans available to Charter Customer municipalities for the purpose

of providing financing under certain circumstances to fufure customers who presently live
in areas of DuPage County not presently served by the Commission. Three

intergovemmental agreements with Charter Customers were made during 2003-2007. Two
of the loans were to be repaid in l3 installments, commencing in 201 I and continuing
through 2023. Both of these loans have been paid in full. The third loan is to be repaid in
l3 installments, commencing in 2014 and continuing through 2026. Interest at a rate of
2o/o per annum shall be paid annually until the principal halance of the loan has been paid
in full. As of April 30, 2013 and 2012, loans totaling $637,570 were due from the

customers.

Paynenls due from Charter Customers are as follows:

Fiscal Year
Endinrl April30

2013
Principal Interest

2014
2015
2016
z0t7
2018
201 I - 2023
2024 -2026

TOTAL

Fiscal Year
Endine April 30

49,044 $
49,044
49,044
49,044
49,044

245,219

12,751
11,771
10,790
9,809
8,828

29,426
I47.t3l 5.885

637,570 $ 8e.260

z0l2
Principal Interest

2013
zOt4
2015
2016
2017
2018 - 2022
2023 -2026

TOTAL

-$
49,044
49,044
49,044
49,044

17,'751
lz,7 5l
ll,7'7 r
10,790
9,809

245,219 34,330
196.175 9.809

- 16-
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DUPACE WATER COMMISSION
ELMHURST, ILLINOIS
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

Prcl irrrinary and Tcntative
For Discussion Purposes Only

4. CAPITAL ASSETS

Capital asset activity for years ended April 30, 2013 and 2012 is as follows:

2013

Balances
May I Additions Retirements April30

Balances

Capital assets not being depreciated
Land and permanent easements

Construction in progress

Total capital assets not being
depreciated

Capital assets being depreciated
Water mains
Buildings and other structures
Pumping equipment
Office furniture and equipment
Vehicles and other equipment

Total capital assets being
depreciated

Less accumulated depreciation
Water mains
Buildings and other structures
Purnping equiprnent
Office furniture and equipment
Vehicles and other equipment

Total accumulated depreciation

Total capital assets being
depreciated, net

CAPITAL ASSETS. NET

$ I 1,728,902 $

369,31s

-$ $

1,944,754 792,489
11,728,902

1,521,580

l2,0gg,?17 1,944,',l54 792,489 13,250,482

364,135,069
101,703,485

15,105,689
4,659,876

616,086

792,486
80,815
10,656

364,135,069
102,495,971

15,177,305
4,665,965

616,086

9,19;
4,667

486.220.205 883,957 13,866 487,090,296

78,081,731
39,723,823
3,964,476
4,539,646

4,547,',728

2,556,997
689,653

37,739

- 82,629,459
- 42,280,720

9,199 4,644,930
4,667 4,572,718

- 472,8744l5,lzl 57 154

126,724,797 7,889,770 13,866 134,600,701

359,495,408 (7,005,813) 352.489.595

$ 371,593,625 $ (5,061,059) $ 792,489 $ 365,740,077

T7



DUPAGE WATER COMMISSION
ELMHURST, ILLINOIS
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

Prelirninary and T'entative

For Discussion I'urposes 0nly

4. CAPITAL ASSETS (Continued)

Capital assets not being depreciated
Land and permanent easements

Construction in progress

Total capital assets not being
depreciated

Capital assets being depreciated
Water mains
Buildings and other structures
Purnping equipment
Office fumiture and equipment
Vehicles and other equiprnent

Total capital assets being
depreciated

Less accumulated depreciation
Water mains
Buildings and other structures
Pumping equiprnent
Office fumiture and equipment
Vehicles and other equipment

Total accumulated depreciatiorr

Total capital assets being
depreciated, net

CAPITAL ASSETS, NET

z0t2
Balances Balances

May I Additions Retirements April30

$ I 1,728,902 $ -s - $ 11.728.902
29.471.584 50.289 29.152.558 369,315

41,200,486 50,289 29,152,558 12,098,217

363,967,660
83,345,488

5,590,563
4,950,267

s8 r .096

167,409
18,362,099
9,656,496

I 17,888

- 364,13s,069
4,L02 101,703,485

131,370 15,105,689
409,279 4,659,876

99.362 64.372 616.086

458^425.0',74 28,403,254 608,123 486,220,205

73,532,715
37,415,621

3,662,969
4,gl4,5gg

425,378

4,549,016
z,3lz,3o4

432,878
77 7J',7

54,115

4,102
l3 I,370
408,279

64,372

78,081,73 I
39,723,823
3,964,476
4,539,646

415,12l
r r 9.95 r.280 7,38 r,640 608,123 126.7?4,79'7

s 379,674,280 $ 21,071,903 $ 29,152,558 $ 371,593,625

5. WATER CONTRACT WITH THE CITY OF CHICAGO

The Commission has entered into a 4O-year contract (from March 19, 1984) with the City
of Chicago, Illinois (the Chicago Contract), under which the City of Chicago (the City) has

agreed to supply all of the Commission's water requirements, up to 1.7 times the year's
annual average day amount, with water of such quality as will meet or exceed applicable
standards of the state and federal governments. The Chicago Contract provides that the
cost of water to the Commission is furnished by the City through meters.

338,473,794 2l 6t4021 359.495.408

- l8 -



DUPAGE WATER COMMISSION
ELMHURST. ILLINOIS
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

Prcl inr inary and'l'entative
For l)iscussion Purposes Only

WATER CONTRACT WITH THE CITY OF CHICAGO (Continued)

The Commission is obligated to purchase a minimum amount of water; such minimum is

50% of the aggregate Illinois Deparhnent of Natural Resources allocations. In flscal20l3
and 2012, the Commission purchased 29.9 and 28.0 billion gallons of water, respectively

fiom the City, which equaled 84.3% and79.SVo, respectively of the aggregate Illinois
Depaftment of Natural Resources allocations.

The Commission has completed constructing irnprovements regarding elechical generation

fhcilities and a solar photovoltaic system at the Lexington pumping station. The City will
reimburse the Commission a tnaximum of (a) 50% of the cost of designing and

constructing the two replacement variable frequency drives, (b) $4,000,000 plus 100% of
the cost of designing and constructing the solar photovoltaic system over and above the

sum of $8,000,000, and (c) $8,500,000 which amount represents the average generation

cost per average daily pumping capacity at the pumping stations where the City has already
constructed backup generation. The City's total obligation for items (a), (b), and (c) cannot

exceed $15,000,000. The City will reimburse the Commission monthly for such costs

through a l0% credit against the Commission's water purchases from the City. Upon
completion, the facilities will be conveyed to the City.

RISK MANACEMENT

The Commission is exposed to various risks of loss related to totts; theft ofl damage to, and

destruction of assets; errors and omissions; natural disasters; injuries to and illnesses of the
Commission's employees. These risks, along with medical claims fbr employees and

retirees, are provided for through insurance purchased from private insurance companies.

There have been no reductions in the Cornrnission's insurance coverage for any of its
programs since the prior fiscal year. Settlements have not exceeded insurance coverage

during the current year or prior three fiscal years.

6.

-19-



DUPAGE WATER COMMISSION
ELMHURST, ILLINOIS
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

Preliminary and'T'entativc
F'or [)iscussion Purposes Only

.7 LONG-TERM DEBT

a. A schedule of changes in long-term obligations payable is as follows:

2013

Balances Balances
May I lssuances Retirements April 30

Other postemploynent bcnefi ts
obligation

Notes payablc

Capital Lease

Rcvcnue rcfunding bonds
Unamortized prenriunr

Total revenue bonds

TOTAL

48,876 $ 1,763 $

Due
Within

One Year

s0.639 $

49"000"000 21.000.000 28,000,000

37,218 't 1/)\ 29.51 3 8,208

61.465,000 42,430,050 61,465,000 42,430.050 16,381,250
798.871 :_"_ 798,871 -

0 62,263,871 42,430,050 16,381,25042.430.

$ 11r,349,9(i5 $ 42,431,813 $ 83,271,576 $ 70,510,202 $ 16,389,4s8

2012

Balances Balances
Due

Within
May 1 lssuances Retireffents Anril 30 One Year

Othcr postcrnploynent bcnefi ts
obligation

Notes payable

Capital Lease

Rcvcnue refunding bonds
Unamortized ptenrium

Total revenue bonds

TOTAL

46.766 $ 2.1 10 $ 48.876 $

70.000.000 - 2r.000.000 49.000.000

42,089 4,871 37,218 7.704

72,030,000 - 10,565,000 61,465,000 11,090,000
I,237,044 - 438,173 798,871 -

73,267,044 - il,003,r73 62,263,871 il,090,000

$l43JliJ!0 $ 44.1ee $ 32,008,044 $1il,349,965 $ 1t,0e7,704

Notes Payable

On December 21, 2009, the Commission issued $30,000,000 Debt Certificates,
Series 2009 to provide fbr the acquisition of water and for improvements and
extensions to the existing fhcilities of the Commission. Principal is due in one
installment on December 21.2015: with a variable rate of interest that is determined
and reset annually (1.5% as of April 30, 2013 md2.5Vo as of April 30, 2012), and
also by allowing optional redemption and prepalnnents, in whole and in part, on any
semiannual interest pa)4nent date. As of April 30, 2013 and 2012, $3,000,000 and

$19,000,000 of principal, respectively was outstanding.

b.
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DUPAGE WATER COMMISSION
ELMHURST. ILLINOIS
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

I'relinrinary and'l'entativc
I.or Discussion Purposcs Only

LONG-TERM DEBT (Continued)

b. Notes Payable (Continued)

On May 77,2010, the Commission issued $40,000,000 Debt Certificates, Series

2010 to provide for the acquisition of water and for improvements and extensions to
the existing facilities of the Commission. Principal is due in annual installments
such that principal outstanding may not exceed the following:

May l,

201 3

z0l4
201 5

$ 30.000,000
25,000,000
20,000,000

The remaining principal balance must be paid in fhll by May 1, 2016. Interest is due

on May I and November I, 2013 and 2012 with a variable rate of interest that is
detennined periodically (1.45% as of April 30, 2013 and l.74Vo as of April 30,

2012). As of April30,20l3 and 2012, $25,000,000 and $30,000,000 of principal,
respectively was outstanding.

c. Revenue Bonds

ln February 2013, the Commission issued $42,430,050 Revenue Refunding Bonds
Series 2013. Principal is due in monthly installments of $898,250 to $3,580,000,
interest at 0.98% through maturity at May 15, 2016. The Series 2013 revenue bonds
were issued to refund $50,375,000 of outstanding Revenue Bondo Series 2003 (call
date May 1, 2013) with an average interest rate of 3.98%. As such, the Series 2003

were retired and the liability for the debt has been removed from the Commission's
books. As a result of the refunding, the Commission achieved cash flow savings of
$3, t I t ,221 and an economic gain of $3,181,241.

As of April 30, 2013, $42,430,050 of principal remained outstanding on the Series
2013 bonds. ln addition, the bonds are subject to ceftain tetms and conditions
contained in the Master Revenue Bond Ordinance (the Ordinance), which was
approved in Decernber 2012 by the Board and adopted when the Commission
refinanced the Revenue Bonds, Series 2003, and issued the Revenue Bonds, Series
2013, in February 2013. Substantially all revenue generated from the Commissionos
operations are pledged to retire these bonds.
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LONG-TERM DEBT (Continued)

c. Revenue Bonds (continued)

In August 2003, the Comrnission issued $135,995,000 Revenue Refunding Bonds,

Series 2003. Principal is due in annual installments of $7,880,000 to $13,575,000,
interest at 3.00% to 5.25Vo through maturity on May l, 2016. The Series 2003

revenue bonds have an average interest rate of 3.98% and were issued to refuttd

$145,655,000 of outstanding Revenue Bond, Series 1993 with an average interest

rate of 5.3%. As a result, the Series 1993 bonds were retired and the liability for the

debt has been removed from the Commission's books.

As of April 30, 2012, $61,465,000 of principal remained outstanding on the Series

2003 bonds. ln addition, the bonds are subject to ceftain terms and conditions
contained in the Master Revenue Bond Ordinance (the 1987 Ordinance), which was

created when the Comrnission initially issued Revenue Bonds, Series 1987 and

subsequently replaced with the new Ordinance. Substantially all revenue generated

from the Commission's operations were pledged to retire these bonds.

Payments due on the revenue bonds through maturity are as follows:

SERIES 2013 BONDS
Fiscal Year 2013

Endinq Auril 30. Principal Interest

20t4
2015
2016
z0t7

TOTAL

Fiscal Year

16,381,250 $
14,094,250
I 1,056,2-50

416,855
192,025
66,248

134

SERIES 2OO3 BONDS

Ending April 30, Principal

898.300

$ 42,430,050 $ 615.862

z0l2

2013
2014
2015
20r 6
2017

TOTAL

I1,090,000 $
I 1,645,000
12,255,000
12,900,000
13.575.000

2,921,937
2,339,006
l,7l1,631
l,o5l,3l2

356"344
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7. LONC-TERM DEBT (Continued)

d. Revenue Bond Ordinance

On December 18, 2012, the Commission adopted the Ordinance authorizing the
issuance of Water Revenue Bonds, Series 2013, fbr the purpose of replacing the 1987

Ordinance and refunding the Water Revenue Bonds, Series 2003.

The Ordinance required the establishment various accounts within the Water Fund
designated as Operation and Maintenance Account, Interest Account, Principal
Account, Bank Obligation Account, and General Account.

Revenues held or collected from owners and operation of the system are deposited in
the Water Fund. Monies deposited in the Water Fund are required to be transferred

to the extent available within the following accounts of the Water Fund in the
indicated order:

Operation and Maintenanee Account - There shall be credited to the Operation
and Maintenance Account an amount sufficient to pay Operation and

Maintenance costs which shall not cause the balance in such account at any

time to be greater than the Operation and Maintenance Maximum Amount.

Interest Account - There shall next be credited to the Interest Account and paid
immediately to the Purchaser the then cuffent interest due on the Bonds plus, at

the Commission's option, the interest due for the next following month. All
moneys to the credit of said Account shall be used solely to pay interest on

Outstanding Bonds.

Principal Account - There shall next be credited to the Principal Account at the
Commission's option, all or a portion of the principal due for the next
following Fiscal Year. All moneys to the credit of the Principal Account shall
be used solely to pay principal on Outstanding Bonds.

Bank Obligations Account - There shall next be credited to the Bank
Obligations Account and paid immediately to the Purchaser any amounts due

on Bank Obligations. All moneys to the credit of said Account shall be used

solely to pay amounts due on Bank Obligations.

General Account - AII moneys remaining in the Water Fund after crediting the
required amounts to the respective Accounts hereinabove provided for and after
making up any deficiency in any of said Accounts, including for past due

amounts that remain unpaid, shall be credited to the General Account.

All the accounts are held bv the Commission.
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7. LONG-TERM DEBT (Continued)

d. Revenue Bond Ordinance (Continued)

On .Tanuary 15, 1987, the Commission adopted the I987 Ordinance authorizing the
issuance of Water Revenue Bonds, Series I 987, for the purpose of financing a

portion of the constnrction of the water supply system.

The 1987 Ordinance required the establishment of funds designated as Water Fund
Revenue Bond Construction Fund, Special Redemption Fund, and Rebate Fund (the

Arbitrate Rebate Fund) and various accounts within the Water Enterprise Fund
designated as Operation and Maintenance Account, Interest Account, Principal
Account, Debt Service Resele Account, Operation and Maintenance Reserve

Accounto Depreciation Account, and General Account.

Revenues held or collected from owners and operation of the system are deposited in
the Water Fund. Monies deposited in the Water Fund are required to be transferred
to the extent available within the fbllowins accounts of the Water Fund in the
indicated order:

Operation and Maintenance Account - an amount sufficient to pay operation
and maintenance costs for the curuent month and up to and including the next
monthly accounting.

Interest Account - monthly one-twelfth of the then current interest requirement
until there has been accumulated the then current interest requirement less

interest due and paid at stated maturity during the fiscal year.

Principal Account - monthly one-twelfth of the then current principal
requirement until there has been accumulated on or before the next stated
maturity or mandatory redemption date an amount sufficient to pay the
principal due.

Debt Service Reserve Account - an amouilt equal to the maximum annual debt
service requirement less the amount of any applicable surety bond coverage.

Operation and Maintenance Reserue Account - an amount equal to one-sixth of
an amount equal to two months of the budgeted annual operation and
maintenance costs until such reserve equals two months of the annual
operation and maintenance costs.

Depreciation Account - monthly amounts of at least $ 175,000. Any amounts in
excess of the required rninimum balance of $5,000,000 maybe transf'erred to
the General Account of the Water Fund by resolution of the Board of
Commissioners.
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LONG-TERM DEBT (Continued)

Revenue Bond Ordinance (Continued)

General Account - all revenues remaining in the Water Fund after all required

transfers are made to the respective accounts will be transferred to this account.

The 1987 Ordinance required that the Interest Account, the Principal Account, and

the Debt Service Reserve Account be held by the Trustee. All other accounts were
held bythe Commission.

The 1987 Ordinance provided for the creation of the Special Redemption Fund to be

held by the Trustee to account for issuance proceeds and condemnation awards to the

extent not used to repair or replace the system and any other Commission-designated
transfer. These monies may be used for debt service purposes. This fund was not
active in fiscal2012.

The 1987 Ordinance created the Arbitrage Rebate Fund to be held by the Trustee to
maintain the tax-exempt status of the interest paid on the bonds. Beginning in fiscal
1988, an account was established and funds were transferred to segregate funds
deerned neeessary to maintain the tax-exempt status of the revenue bonds.
Investment earnings of the Interest Account, Principal Account, and Debt Service
Reserve Account is used for the pulpose of funding amounts set aside in the
Arbitrage Rebate Fund.

In accordance with the Commission's revenue bond ordinance, the Commission
maintains accounts for the Revenue Bond Construction Fund, the Special
Redemption Fund, and the Arbitrage Rebate Fund, but these funds were inactive
through January 31, 2013.

Restricted assets related to the previous bond ordinance at April 30, 2012 are as

fbllows:

d.

SERIES 2OO3 BONDS.1987 ORDINANCE

Operation and Maintenance account
Operation and Maintenance Reserve account
Interest account
Principal account
Depreciation account

TOTAL RESTRICTED ASSETS

2012

$ t 3,687,440
12,411,745

1,6040976
I1,094,158
6,943,8 r 6
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LONG-TERM DEBT (Continued)

e. Capital Lease

In September 201l, the Commission entered into a capital lease obligation for offtce
equipment which expires in five years. Future minimum lease payments under capital
leases for the next five vears in total are as follows:

Fiscal Year
Endine April 30 Principal

2014
201 5
2016
2017
Total Minirnum Future Lease Pavments
Less Interest
Present Value of Minirnum Future Lease Payrnents

8. RESTRICTED NET POSITION

$ 9,849
9,849
9,849
3,283

32,830
3"317

s 29,513

The Commission had no restricted net position at the end of fiscal year 2013 due to the
approval of the Ordinance in December 2012 by the Board, which replaced the 1987

Ordinance when the Cornmission refinanced the Revenue Bonds. Series 2003. and issued

the Revenue Bonds, Series 2013, in February 2013.
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8. RESTRICTED NET POSITION (continued)

The Commission had the fbllowing restricted net position as of April 30, 2012 related to

the 1987 Ordinance:

SERIES 2OO3 BONDS - T987 ORDINANCE

Restricted net position:
Restricted assets Note 7)

Add restricted investment earnings
Revenue refunding bonds

Principal account
Interest aocount

Operations and Maintenance Reserve account
Depreciation account

Total restricted investment earninss

Less current liabilities payable from restricted assets

Revenue refunding bonds
Operations and Maintenance account

Accounts payable
Accrued liabilities
Compensated absences

Interest account
Accrued interest payable

Total current liabilities payable from restricted assets

Less excess in Irrterest account
Less excess in Principal account
Less excess in Operations and Maintenance Reserue account
Less excess in Depreciation account

TOTAL RESTRICTED NET POSITION

9. CONTINCENCIES

2012

fi 45"742,135

31,92;
1 3,1 36

45,061

7,Q17,534
2g2,gl7
190,436

l,5gg,594
g,loo,3gl

5,382
4,158

78,437
3r.9s2

$ 36,566,886

Contingent Liabilities

The Commission has certain other contingent liabilities resulting from litigation, claims,
and commitments incident to the ordinary course of business. It is expected that final
resolution of such contingencies will not materially affect the financial position or changes
in financial position of the Commission.
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IO. MAJOR CUSTOMER

During fiscal year 2013 and 2012, approximately 6.1 and 5.5 billion gallons, or 21.01%

and 20.01%, respectively of water sales revenue in the Water Fund were realized flom the

City of Naperville, the Commission's largest customer.

1I. DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN

Illinois Municipal Retirernent Fund

Plan Description. The Commission's deflned benefit pension plan for regular employees

provides retirement and disability benefits, post retirement increases, and death benefits to
plan members and beneficiaries. The Commission's plan is affiliated with the lllinois
Municipal Retirement Fund (IMRF), an agent multiple-employer plan. Benefit provisions
are established by statute and may only be changed by the General Assembly of the State of
Illinois. IMRF issues a publicly available financial report that includes financial statements

and required supplementary infoffiation. That repofi rnay be obtained online at

www.imrf.org.

IMRF provides two tiers of pension benefits. Employees hired prior to January l, 201l,
are eligible for Tier I benefits. For Tier I employees, pension benefits vest after eight
years of seruice. Participating members who retire at age 55 (reduced benefits) or after age

60 (full benefits) with eight years of credited service are entitled to an annual retirement
benefit, payable monthly for life, in an amount equal to | 213% of their final rate of
eamings, fbr each year of credited service up to 1 5 years, and ZVo for each year thereafter.

Employees hired on or after January l, 201 l, are eligible for Tier 2 benefits. For Tier 2
employees, pension benefits vest after ten years of seruice. Participating members who
retire at age 62 (reduced benefits) or after age 67 (full benefits) with ten years of credited
service are entitled to an annual retirement benefit, payable monthly for life, in an amount
equal to | 2l3o/o of their final rate of eamings, for each year of credited service up to I 5

years, and LVo for each year thereafter.

Funding Policy. As set by statute, the Commission's Regular plan members are required to
contribute 4.50% of their annual covered salary. The statute requires the Commission to
contribute the arnount necessary in addition to mernber contributions, to finance the
retirement coverage of its own employees. The employer annual required contribution rate
for calendar year 2012 was 1I.92%. The employer also contributes fbr disability benefits,
death benefits and supplemental retirement benefits, all of which are pooled at the IMRF
Ievel. Contribution rates for disability and death benefits are set by the IMRF Board of
Trustees, while the supplemental retirement benefits rate is set by statute.
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11. DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN (Continued)

Illinois Municipal Retirement Fund (Continued)

Annual Pension Cbs/. For April 30, 2013 and 2012, the Commission's annual pension cost

of $304,608 and $?82,693, respectively was equal to the Commission's required and actual

contributions. The required contribution for 2012 was determined as paft of the

December 3 l, 2010 actuarial valuations using the entry-age actuarial cost method. The

aotuarial assumptions at December 31, 2010 inoluded (a) 7 .5}o/o investment rate of return
(net of administrative and direct investnent expenses)o ft) projected salary increases of
4.00% a year attributable to inflation, (c) additional projected salary increases ranging from
0.4Qo/o to 10.00% per year depending on age and service, attributable to seniority/merit, and

(d) postretirement benefit increases of 3.00% annually. The actuarial value of the

Commission's plan assets was determined using techniques that spread the effects of shorl-

term volatility in the market value of investments over a five-year period with a 20%

corridor in calendar year 20I I and a 15% corridor in calendar year 2010 between the

actuarial and market value of assets. The Commission's plan's unfunded actuarial accrued

liability at December 31, 2010 is being amortized as a level of percentage of projected
payroll on an open 30 year basis.

Employer annual pension costs (APC), actual contributions, and the net pension obligation
(NPO) are as follows. The NPO is the cumulative difference between the APC and the

contributions actually made.

Illinois
Fiscal Municipal
Year Retirement

Annual pension cost (APC) $ 271,059
282,693
304,608

$ 271,059
282,693
304,608

100.00%
100.00%
100.00%

Actual contributions

Percentage of APC contributed

20r 1

2012
2013

201 I
2012
201 3

201 I
2Q1?

2013

201 r
2012
20r3

NPO
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I l. DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN (Continued)

Illinois Municipal Retirement Fund (Continued)

Fwtded Status and Funding Progress. The funded status and funding progress of the plan

as of December 31, 2012 and 2011 was as follows:

2012 201 I

Actuarial accrued liability (AAL) $ 6,949,144 $

Actuarial value of plan assets 5,501,960
Unfunded actuarial accrued liability (UAAL) I,447,184
Funded ratio (actuarial value of plan assets/AAl) 79.17%
Covered payroll (active plan members) fi 2,514,715 $

UAAL as a percentage of covered payroll 5755%

6,361,630
4,783,201
1,578,429

75.r9%
2,484,345

63.54%

The schedule of funding progress, presented as required supplementary information
following the notes to financial statements, presents multi-year trend information about
whether the actuarial value of plan assets is increasing or decreasing over time relative to
the AAL for benefits.

12, OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS

Plan Description

In addition to providing the pension benefits described, the Commission provides
posternployment health care benefits (OPEB) for retired employees through a single-
ernployer def,rned benefit plan (the Plan). The benefits, benefit levels, employee
contributions, and employer contributions are governed by the Commission and can
be amended by the Commission. Certain benefits are controlled by state laws and
can only be changed by the Illinois Legislature. The Plan is not accounted for as a
trust firnd. as an irrevocable trust has not been established to account for the Plan.
The Plan does not issue a separate repoft.

Benefits Provided

The Commission provides pre and post-Medicare postretirement health insurance to
retirees, their spouses and dependents (enrolled at time of employee's retirement).
To be eligible for benefitso the employee must qualify for retirement under one of the
Commission's retirement plans. The retirees pay the blended premium. Upon a
retiree becoming eligible for Medicare, the arnount payable under the Commission's
health plan will be reduced by the amount payable under Medicare for those
expenses that are covered under both.

b.
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12. OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (Continued)

c. Membership

At April 30, 2013, the most recent actuarial valuation, membership consisted of:

Retirees and beneficiaries currently receiving
benefits

Teminated employees entitled
to benefits but not yet receiving them

Active vested plan members
Active nonvested plan members

TOTAL

Participating employers

Funding Policy

The Commission is not required to and curuently does not advance fund the cost of
benefits that will become due and payable in the future. Active employees do not
contribute to the Plan until retirement.

Annual OPEB Costs and Net OPEB Obligation

The Commission's annual OPEB cost, the percentage of annual OPEB cost

contributed to the Plan, and the net OPEB obligation for 2013, 2012 and 201I was as

follows:

2

23

il

Percentage of
Annual OPEB NetOPEB

Cost Contributed Oblieation

36

d.

e.

Fiscal
Year

Ended

Annual
OPEB
Cost

April 30, 201I
April 30,2012
April30,2013

8,499
8,480
8,1 33

74.95%
7s.12%
78.30%

46,166
48,876
50,63e
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12. OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (Continued)

e. Annual OPEB Costs and Net OPEB Obligation (Continued)

The net OPEB obligation as of,April 30, 2013 and 2012 was calculated as follows:

2013 2012

Annual required contribution
Interest on net OPEB obligation
Adiustment to annual required contribution

Annual OPEB cost
Contributions made

Increase in net OPEB obligation
Net OPEB obligation, beginning of year

NET OPEB OBLIGATION" END OF YEAR

Actuarial accrued liability (AAL)
Actuarial value of plan assets

Unfunded actuarial accrued liability (UAAL)
Funded ratio (actuarial value of plan assets/AAl)
Covered payroll (active plan members)
UAAL as a percentage of covered payroll

7,755 $

1,955
(r.s77)

7,755
2,338

(l,6r3)

8,133
6,370

8,480
6,370

1,763
48,876

?,1l0
46,766

s0.639 $ 48,876

Frurded Status and Funding Progress: The funded status of the Plan as of April 30,

2013 (most recent valuation) was as follows:

86,237

86,237
0.00%

2,643,509
3.26%

Actuarial valuations of an ongoing plan involve estimates of the value of repofted
amounts and assumptions about the probability of occurrence of events far into the
future. Examples include assumptions about future employment, mortality, and the
healthcare cost trend. Amounts determined regarding the funded status of the Plan
and the annual required contributions of the ernployer are subject to continual
revision as actual results are compared with past expectations and new estimates are

made about the future. The schedule of funding progress, presented as required
supplementary information following the notes to financial statements, presents
multi-year trend information that shows whether the actuarial value of plan assets is
increasing or decreasing over time relative to the actuarial accrued liabilities for
benefits.
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12. OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (Continued)

e. Annual OPEB Costs and Net OPEB Obligation (Continued)

Actuarial methods and assumptions * projections of benefits for financial reporting
purposes are based on the substantive plan (the Plan as understood by the employer
and plan members) and include the types of benefits provided at the time of each

valuation and the historical pattem of sharing of benefit costs between the employer
and plan members to that point. The actuarial methods and assumptions used include
techniques that are designed to reduce short-term volatility in actuarial accrued

liabilities and the actuarial value of assets, consistent with the long-term perspective

of the calculations.

In the April 30, 2013 actuarial valuation, the entry-age notmal actuarial cost method
was used. The actuarial assumptions included an investment rate of return of 4.0%
and an initial healthcare cost trend rate of 8.0% with an ultimate healthcare inflation
rate of 6.0%. Both rates include a 3.0% inflation assumption and 4.0% wage

inflation assumption. The actuarial value of assets was not determined as the
Commission has not advance funded its obligation. The Plan's unfunded actuarial
accrued liability is being amortized as a level percentage of projected payroll on an

open basis. The remaining amortization period at April 30, 2013 was 30 years.

I3. CUSTOMERPREPAYMENTS

Payments flom non-Charter Customers for custorner differential revenues are repofted as

unearned revenues. These unearned revenues will be arnortized on a straight-line basis

through April 30, 2024. Customer ditTerentials represent payments for connecting to the
Commission's system as well as fixed costs charged to subsequent customers to cover
costs which would have been paid by subsequent customers if they had been Charter
Customers.

14. SALES TAX

Beginning June 1, 2016, the sales tax imposed may no longer be imposed or collected,
unless a continuation of the tax is approved by the voters at a referendum.
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SCHEDULE OF FUNDINC PROGRESS

ILLINOIS MLIMCIPAL RETIREMENT FUND

April30, 2013

Prelim inary and'l'entati ve

For Discussion l'urposcs Orrly

Actuarial
Valuation

December 3l

(l)
Actuarial
Value of

ASSetS

(4)

Unfunded
(Overtunded)

AAL
(uAAr)
(oAAL)

(5)
Covered

UAAL
(OAAL)

asa
Percentage

ofCovered
Payroll
(4) / (5)

(2)
Actuarial
Accrued (3)
Liability F-unded

(AAL) Ratio
Entry-Age (1) / (2) (2) - (l) Paytoll

2007

2008

2009

2010

201 l

2012

4,742,810 $

4,653,290

5,026,706

4,142,473

4,783,201

5,501,960

5,068,990

5,774,686

6,359,912

5,795,662

6,361,630

6.949,144

93.57% $

80.58%

79.04%

71.48%

75.19%

79.17%

326,180 $ 2,441,680 13.36%

1,121,396 2,602,5',16 43.09%

1,333,206 2,760,942 48.29%

1,6s3,189 2,537,383 65.15%

1,578,429 2,484,345 63.54%

1,44',7,184 2,5t4,7t5 57.55n/o

Onamarketvaluebasis,theactuarialvalueofassetsasofDecember3l,20l2is$5,711,138. Onamarket
basis, the funded ratio would be 82.18%.

The actuarial value of assets and accrued liability cover active and inactive members who have service

credit with the DuPage Water Commission. They do not include amounts for retirees. The acturial accrued

liability for retirees is 100% frurded.

(See independent auditor's repoft.)
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April30,20l3

Prelirnirrary and Terrtative

For Discussion I'urposcs 0nly

Fiscal
Year

Employer

Contributions

Annual
Required

Contribution Percentage

Contributed

2008

2009

2010

201 I

2012

201 3

295,1 99

240,646

265,581

271,059

282,693

304,608

AR

295,199

240,646

265,581

271,059

282,693

304,608

100.00%

100.00%

100.00%

100.00%

100.00%

100.00%

(See independent auditor's report.)
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Actuarial (l)

(2)

Actuarial
Accrued

Valuation Actuarial Liability
Date Value of (AAL)

(3)

Funded

Ratio

(4)

Unfunded
AAL

(UAAL)
(2) - (l)

UAAL
asa

Percentage

ofCovered

April 30 Assets Entry-Age (l) / (2)

(s)
Covered Payroll
Payroll (a)l (5)

2008 $

2009

2010

201 I

z0l2

2013

fi 67,267

+

78,076

+

+

86,237

0.00% fi 67,267 $

+*

0.00% 78,076

+

*

86,2370.00%

2,477,690

+

2,920,206

+

t

2,643,508

2.7t%

2.77%

3.26%

*The requirements under GASB Statement No. 45 require an actuarial valuation every three years.

Therefore, no actuarial valuation was done as ofApril 30, 2009, 201 l, and 2012.

(See independent auditor's report.)
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OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFIT PLAN

April 30,2013

Preliminary ancl'l'entative
For Discussion Purposcs Only

Fiscal
Year

Employer
Contributions

Arurual
Required

Contribution
(ARC)

Percentage

Contributed

2008

2009

2010

201 I

20t2

2013

6,370

6,370

6,370

6,370

6,370

13,231

8,760

9,760

I,llJ

7 755

0.00%

72.72%

72.72%

82.r4%

82.14%

82.r4%

(See independent auditor's report.)
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Prel irn inary and'l'entative
For Discussion Pttrposes Only

SUPPLEMENTAL DATA



DUPACE WATER COMMISSION
ELMHURST. ILLINOIS

SCHEDULES OF REVENUES. EXPEN$ES, AND
CHANGES IN NET POSITION . BUDCET AND ACTUAL

For the Years Ended Apnl 30, ?0 | 3 and 20 | 2

Prelirnirrary and Tentative
For Discussion I'urposes Only

Budsct Actual Variance

201 2

Actual
201 3

OPERATING REVENUES
Water sales

Operations and maintenance costs

Fixed costs

Custorner differential
Other incone

Total operating revenues

OPERATING EXPENSES
Water supply costs

Personal sewices
Insurance

Professional and contractual services

Adrninistrativc costs

Total operating expenses

OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) BEFORE DEPRECIATION

DEPRECIATION

OPERATING INCOM E (LOSS)

NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)

Sales tax

Investmeflt incotne
Intergovernmcntal expense

Intcrcst and other chargcs

Loss on disposal ofcapital assets

Total nonoperating tevenues (expenses)

NET INCOME (LOSS) BEFORE CONTRIBUT]ONS

Contdbutions

CHANCE IN NET POSITION

NET POSITION, MAY I

NET POSITION, APRIL 30

87.327.696 s2;765,657 5,437,961

79,254,842 $

7,144,729
928, I 25

84,535,827 $ 5,280,985

7,144,872
920,1 84

tM,774 1M,774

143

(7,e41)

6r,640, r45

7,144,594
907,830
?.4q 41\

70,041,994

8l,609,425 82,207,354
3,871,225 3,682,I95
668,844 53l,0lt

{o7 0?q

( r 89,030)
(r 37,834)
( I 85,205)

64,544,607

3,529,546

545,810

657,286

440. I 93

824,700 639,495

732.733 555.9t4 il76.819)

8'1 ;106.92'1 87.61 5.968 (90.959) 69;7l't,442

(379,23r) s,149,689 5,528,920 774 \57

7,904,000 7,889,'t'10 (14,230) 7,38r,640

(8.283.23t) (2.740.081) (5.543.t50) (7-057.088)

3l,399,5r9
258,268

(5.305,680)

33,098,620

508,005

(3,563,0r 4)

I,699,I01
249,737

1,742,666

3 I,878,3 l2
114,872
(36,508)

(4,988,573)
( I ,145,593)

?6.352"107 30.043.61 I 3.69 1.504 25.822.510

t8,068,876 27,303,530 9,214,654

597.232 348.967 {248.265)

18,765,422

29.236

$ r 8,666,108 27 ,652,497 $ 8,986,389 I 8,794,658

34 1,8 1 0,037

$ 369,462,534

323,01 5,3 79

W.

(See independent auditor's report.)
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F'or I)iscussion Purposes Orrly

STATISTICAL SECTION



DUPAGE WATER COMMISSION
ELMHURST, ILLINOIS

SALES TAX REVENUES

FOR THE YEARS ENDED APRIL 30

I'relirninary and Tentative
For Discussion Purposes Only

Year
Ended

Sales Tax
Revenues

33,098,620
31,878,312

30,780,825
29,046,664

3l,l 18,492

201 3

2012
201 I
2010
2009

-39-



DUPAGE WATER COMMISSION
ELMHURST, ILLINOIS

STATE WATER ALLOCATJONS

Pre I im inrrry atrcl Tc-ntativc

For Discussion Purposes Only

2010

(Millions Callons Pcr Day) 
(1)

2020 2030

Addison
Argonne National Laboratory (2)

Bensenvillc
Bloorrringdale
Carol Streatn

Clarendon Hills
Daricn
Downcrs Crove

DuPage County
Glen Ellt"n Heights

Steeple Run

S.E.R,W.F.
Hobson Vallcy

Elmhurst
Glenn Ellyn
Glendale Heights

Hinsdale
lllinois American

Arrowhead
Country Club Estates

Dupage/Lisle
Liberty Ridge East

Liberty Ridge West

l,ombard Heights
Vallcy View

Itasca

Lislc
Lonrbard
Naperville
Oak Brook
Oak Brook Terrace

Roselle
Villa Park

Wcstmont
Whcaton
Willowbrook
Winfield
Wood Dalc
Woodridge

Total average rngd

4,230
0.758

2.571
2.767
4.21*\

0.832

2.934
6.589

0.210
0.1 83

0.643

0.051

4.699
2.985

2.869
2.162

0.190
0.1 05

0.555

0.042

0.305

0.065

0.700
1.666

3.024
4,777

I 8.803

4,205

0.281

2.206
2.146
2.945
5.821

1.26'.1

1.011

1.613

3.876

94.89S

4.457
0.758

2.616
3,048

4,600

0.888

3.254
7.265

0,283

0.1 89

0.708

0.126
4.749
3.1 64

2.977
2.923

0.190
0.105

0.585

0.048

0.349
0.065

0.700
1.95 I
3.261
5.177

21.683
4.508
0.293
2,357
2.206
3.069
6.008
1.452

1,188

1.680

4.479

4.682
0.758

2,660
7 71}1

4.926
0.942
3,293

7.937

0.395

0.1 95

0.782
0.1 95

4.797
3.349
3.086
3,081

0.1 90

0.1 05

0.615

0.0s4
0.400
0.065

0.700
2.143
3.497
5.572

24.560
4.675

0.293
2.508

2.284
_1, l /-)

6.191

1.636

L366
t.747
4.479

I10.6-58
@

103.359

l. State Water allocations are expressed in terms of average quantity per day. Actual usc in a day rnay cxceed

average daily use.

2. The state has detemrined that no water allocation penttit is rcquircd fcrr Argonne National Laboratory to draw

water fiorn Lake Michigan. The figures set fotlh in this table represent thc maxirnum amount of water the

Commission is obligated to sell to Argonne National Laboratory,

-40-



Prel iminary and'fentati ve

DUPAGE WATER COMMISSION For Disottssion Purpr.rscs Only

ELMHURST, ILLTNOIS

WATER REVENUES AND USAGE

FOR THE YEARS ENDED APRIL 30

Year

Ended

Water
Sales (1)

$ 91,680,699
68,784,739
58,863,923
48,522,181

40,553,237

39,390,157

Gallons
Sold

(in 000's)

fi 29,228,914
27,508,123

28,110,957
27,960,000
29,128,241

31,015,607

2013
2012
20l l
2010
2009
2008

( I ) Amounts include water sales from operation and maintenance costs and fixed costs,

excludes customer differential

-4r -
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